

Memphis Knoxville Chattanooga Nashville

FACULTY SENATE MINUTES

UTHSC Faculty Senate Meeting

Zoom Monthly Meeting January 10, 2023

Attendance: (senators, administrators, and faculty)

Attending: Jillian McCarthy, Paul J Koltnow, Karen Derefinko, Tayebeh Pourmotabbed, Phyllis Richey, Brett Wilson, Richard Smith, Terrance G Cooper, Ioannis Dragatsis, Shelley White-Means, Ramesh Narayanan, Wen Lin Sun, Jeff Staack, Nina K Sublette, Kristen Bettin, Nicolas Chiriboga, Thaddeus A Wilson, Emma Murray, L. Alexia Williams, Kim Carter, David Hamilton, Yi Lu, Chris Wood, Steven M Doettl, Laura T Reed, Maggie Wheeler, Alexandria Q Wilson, Kimberly Kennel, Elisha McCoy, Hassan Almoazen, Shaunta' Martina Chamberlin, Jaqueline D Venturin, Tauheed Ishrat, Vrushali Abhyankar, Yanhui Zhang, Hilary Jasmin, Mary Erickson, Ted Cory, Frank Park, Shaunta' Martina Chamberlin, Sandip K Basu, Ricketta H Clark, Kimberly Morris, Paul C Gahn, Jeffry Bieber, Myra M Meekins, Twisha Oza, Sanjay Mohan, Kevin William Freeman, Vinay Jain, Jason Yaun, Wanda Irene Claro-Woodfuff, Kevin William Freeman, Fatima Ahmed, Kim Morris, Heather Moss, Rebecca Reynolds, Martin Donaldson, Tracy McClinton, Helmut O Steinberg, Michelle Lynn Abramovitz, Alina Cernasev, Elizabeth Carper, Kristi Forman, Cynthia Russell, Lee Weaver, Dan Young, Tim Florence, Jess Newman.

Meeting was called to order at 4:02 pm CST/5:02 pm EST

Faculty Senate Meeting

Presiding: Dr. Jillian McCarthy, President

Approval of December 13, 2022 minutes:



- The floor was opened for discussion of the December 13, 2022 meeting minutes. No edits were recommended. Dr. Mary Erikson motioned to accept the minutes as written. Motion was seconded by Dr. Ioannis Dragatsis.
 - o Poll Everywhere vote

■ Accept: 97% (34/35)

■ Do not accept: 0% (0/31)

Abstain: 3% (1/31)

Discussion with Jess Newman from UTHSC Library:

- Discussion of what data qualifies
- Nomination of a steward
- Allowable costs:
 - You can apply for funding to cover costs
- Applies to all NIH funded data collection (including career development awards, small business)
- Finding a repository
- Questions:
 - o How much money should be put aside?
 - Library can consult with you
 - There are free repositories
 - o Is this different than Resource Sharing Plan
 - Yes, it is more detailed and includes a specific repository
 - Sample text available on the link below
- Link: https://libguides.uthsc.edu/data/data-services

Discussion and Vote regarding the revised Bylaws

- Changes described by Dr. Terrance Cooper (see Addendum 1)
 - o Bylaws were recirculated due to small changes highlighted in yellow
 - o Changes included:



- Deans of all colleges including the library here and hereafter
- Grammar corrections on page 2
- Department of college under section 5
- Officer term included that president elect assumed position (not elected prior yeat)
- Set of TUFS policies were also included (selection by FSEC and term 3 years)
 - TUFS representative is voting eligible for the FSEC
- Dr. Terrance Cooper motioned to accept the bylaws as written. Dr. Ioannis Dragatsis seconded.
 - o Poll Everywhere vote on document
 - Accept: 97% (40/42)
 - Do Not Accept: 0% (1/42)
 - Abstain: 3% (1/42)
 - Accept as written

Committee Updates:

- Non Tenure Track
 - Committee met. Summary of discussion will be provided at next full senate meeting.

New Business:

- Dr. Tracy McClinton and Dr. Chris Wood discussed clearances necessary for residents of Regional one to access UTHSC resources (need Net ID)
- Our residents cannot be competitive if they lack access to these resources of the university
- Dr. Wood requested assistance with this issue
 - Dr. Cynthia Russell has already reached out to additional parties at the university to ensure that this access is granted

Announcements:

Up-coming senate meetings:



o 02/14/23: Working on lining up a speaker: May be interprofessional education day information

The meeting adjourned at 4:48 pm CST/5:48 pm EST.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dr. Karen Derefinko Faculty Senate Secretary

Addendum 1

6-2-22 FSEC Approved revision of Bylaws
6-14-22 Amendment added in green
10-6-22 Correction to 6-14-22 Bylaws highlighted in yellow
10-6-22 Revisions requested by Kristi Forman highlighted in blue
10-6-22 Bylaws as approved by FSEC for distribution to
Senate
10-6-22 Distributed to Handbook Committee & President for approval of
the revised text
10-25-22 Distributed to all members of Senate for a vote at November
Senate meeting
11-8-22 Draft approved by the Faculty Senate
11-14-22 Submitted to CAO for disposition
12-14-22 Received request for revisions from CAO's Office
12-18-22 Distributed Revisions to Handbook Committee
12-19-22 Distributed to FSEC members for disposition

12-20-22 FSEC Approved for distribution to full Senate

APPENDIX B – BYLAWS OF UTHSC FACULTY SENATE

Revised September 14, 1993 Amended February 11, 1997 Amended April 13, 1999 Amended Nov 14, 2006

Article I. Name

The name of this organization is the Faculty Senate of The University of Tennessee Health Science Center (UTHSC) (hereafter called *Faculty Senate*).

Article II. Purpose

The Faculty Senate exists to represent the UTHSC faculty as its sole elected body and to provide a systematic means for faculty participation in the affairs of The University of Tennessee.

Article III. Members

Section 1. Membership Categories

The two categories of members are voting elected and nonvoting *ex officio*. *Ex officio* members are the President of The University of Tennessee; the Chancellor of the University of Tennessee Health Science Center; the Chief Academic Officer; deans of all colleges (including the Library here and hereafter); and presidents of the faculty organizations of the colleges or the equivalent.

Section 2. Eligibility for Membership in the Faculty Senate

Faculty members with regular full-time, part-time, or emeritus appointments are eligible to be senators. The number of senators representing a department or the equivalent is based on the total number of faculty with primary appointments in the department, excluding those with volunteer, affiliated, adjunct and emeritus appointments. Each department or the equivalent has one elected senator for every fifteen full-time faculty members (15 FTEs) or fraction thereof. In each department or the equivalent, the total number of full-time equivalent faculty members equals the sum of regular faculty members multiplied by their percentage of full-time effort.

Each college or the equivalent has at least eight elected senators. A college with fewer than eight departments or the equivalent elects the additional senators as members at large.

Administrative faculty members (division chief / department chair / or equivalent (assistant / associate dean / dean or higher administrative position) are not eligible for Faculty Senate membership.

No matter the location, all recognized departments into which faculty members are appointed will elect senators for representation on the faculty Senate as per the guidelines set forth in these bylaws. A recognized department has an assigned or appointed department Chair and is an entity into which faculty members can be legitimately appointed for purposes of tenure.

Section 3. Election of Senators and Term of Office

Senators are elected at least one month prior to the annual business meeting of the Faculty Senate for a term of three years. The term begins on July 1 of the year in which the faculty member is elected and ends on June 30 of the third year in office. A senator can serve no more than three consecutive terms. Any year that a senator serves as President of the Faculty Senate is excluded from their term (consecutive years as a Senate member) calculation. Each college must stagger elections so that no more than half its senators are elected annually.

Section 4. Penalties

A senator who is absent from three consecutive meetings without appointing a substitute may be removed from the Faculty Senate by vote of the Faculty Senate Executive Committee. A substitute is defined as a faculty member from that senator's electoral unit who may attend in place of a Senator. However, the Senate President must be notified in writing of the proxy's identity prior to the beginning of the Senate meeting at which the proxy attends.

Section 5. Vacancies

In case of a vacancy in the Faculty Senate due to resignation, leave of absence, or other cause, the appropriate department or college faculty elects a successor to serve as senator for the unexpired term.

Article IV. Officers



Section 1. Titles and Responsibilities

The four officers of the Faculty Senate are the President, President-Elect, immediate Past President, and Secretary. Their responsibilities are as follows:

President

- 1. Presides at all meetings of the Faculty Senate.
- Is the chief spokesperson and representative for the Faculty Senate and faculty of the University of Tennessee Health Science Center.
- 3. Serves as an *ex officio* member of all committees of the Faculty Senate.
- 4. Prepares and presents the annual report at the annual business meeting of the Faculty Senate.
- 5. Requests authorization for expenditures from the Administrative unit responsible for supporting the Faculty Senate. Such requests may also be made by resolution of the Faculty Senate Executive Committee or the full Faculty Senate. The resolution carries by a simple majority of those voting.
- 6. Serves to evaluate faculty grievances as described in Section 7 of the Faculty Handbook.
- 7. Serves as a UTHSC representative to the University of Tennessee Faculty Council.
- 8. Serves as a UTHSC representative to the Tennessee University Faculty Senates.

President-Elect

- 1. Acts as President in the absence of the President.
- 2. Maintains current copies of the bylaws and procedures manual on the Faculty Senate Website.
- 3. Assumes responsibility for the annual Faculty Senate elections.
- 4. Serves as chair of the Faculty Senate Grievance Committee as described in Section 7 of the Faculty Handbook.

Past President

1. Serves as an advisor to the President and the Executive Committee.

Secretary

- Prepares and distributes meeting notices and agendas for Executive Committee and Faculty Senate meetings.
- 2. Prepares, distributes, and maintains the minutes of all actions taken by the Faculty Senate and the Executive Committee.
- 3. Prepares and presents reports as requested.
- 4. Maintains current lists of senators and committee members.
- 5. Records attendance at Executive Committee and Faculty Senate meetings.
- 6. Distributes updated copies of the bylaws or procedures manual to the senators whenever appropriate.
- 7. Assists the President-elect with annual Faculty Senate elections as needed.

Section 2. Nomination, Election, and Term of Office

Candidates for President-Elect and Secretary are nominated by the Executive Committee of the Faculty Senate approximately one month prior to the annual business meeting of the Faculty Senate. Additional nominations may be submitted to the Faculty Senate President with the support of two senators up to ten days prior to the election, allowing information for all pre-announced candidates to be electronically distributed prior to the election. The slate of candidates is submitted to all faculty senators at least ten days before the election. Nominations are also accepted from the floor prior to the election. Officers are elected by majority anonymous vote at the annual business meeting of the Faculty Senate. Confidential votes (email to the Secretary or designee) are permissible for senators connecting remotely to the Senate meeting if the technology for remote anonymous voting is not available at the time

of voting. The term of office for the four officers is for one year beginning July 1 of the year they are elected or assume the position as past-president and ending on June 30 of the next year.

Section 3. Restrictions on Holding Office

The President and President-Elect cannot be from the same college. For this purpose, faculty in the basic science departments and in the clinical medicine departments of the College of Medicine are regarded as being in separate colleges.

An individual may not serve more than two terms as Faculty Senate President.

An individual may not serve more than two terms as Faculty Senate Secretary.

Section 4. Vacancies

If the office of President becomes vacant, the President-Elect fills this vacancy. If the office of President-Elect or Secretary becomes vacant for this or other cause, the Executive Committee nominates replacement candidates, and an election is held at the next meeting of the Faculty Senate. Only elected Senators or current officeholders can be elected or appointed to office.

Article V. Senate Representatives For External Organizations a. Representatives to the University of Tennessee Faculty Council

Section 1. Nomination and Election

The UTHSC representative to the University of Tennessee Faculty Council is nominated and elected following the procedures described in Article IV, Section 2.

Section 2. Terms of Office

The term of office begins on July 1 of the year the representative is elected and ends on June 30 of the third year in office.

The faculty representative to the University Faculty Council will also serve as a voting member of the Faculty Senate and Faculty Senate Executive Committee.

Section 3. Restrictions on Holding Office

An individual may not serve more than two terms as Faculty Senate Representative to the University of Tennessee Faculty Council.

b. Representatives to the Tennessee Universities Faculty Senates (TUFS)

As required by the TUFS Constitution, the elected President of the Faculty Senate shall serve as its voting representative. A campus representative must also be chosen who can vote at TUFS meetings when the Senate President is not able to attend.

Section 1. Selection of a campus representative

The UTHSC campus representative to the TUFS shall be chosen by a majority vote of the Faculty Senate Executive Committee (FSEC). Candidates will be chosen from the FSEC and Senate Committee Chairs.

Section 2. Terms of Office

The term of office begins on July 1 of the year the representative is elected and ends on June 30 of the third year in office.

The campus representative to TUFS will also serve as a voting member of the Faculty Senate and the FSEC.

Article VI. Faculty Representative to the Campus Advisory Board Section 1. Eligibility



Memphis Knoxville Chattanooga Nashville

Faculty members who have held full-time appointments on UTHSC faculty for five (5) or more years and have experience in at least two areas of the UTHSC mission (i.e., teaching, research, clinical care, and/or service) are eligible to be the faculty representative to the Campus Advisory Board.

The term "full-time faculty member" refers to a person whose official employment status is both "full-time" and "faculty" and who is engaged full-time in teaching, research, clinical care and/or service and who does not simultaneously hold an administrative appointment (division chief, department chair or equivalent, assistant, or associate dean or higher administrative position).

Section 2. Nomination and Election

Candidates for Faculty Representative to the Campus Advisory Board may be nominated by any full-time UTHSC faculty member or faculty administrator prior to the March Faculty Senate meeting. Biographical information and a statement (one page total) from each candidate must be submitted to the Faculty Senate Secretary at least twelve days prior to the April Faculty Senate meeting, thus allowing the slate of candidates to be distributed to all faculty senators ten days before the election is conducted at the April Senate meeting. The election is initially conducted following the procedures described in Article IV, Section 2. If no candidate receives greater than fifty (50) percent of the votes cast, a run-off election will immediately follow the initial election. The run-off election slate will consist of the two candidates with the highest number of votes in the first election. In the case of a tie vote in the run-off election, one of the two Representative candidates will be chosen by vote of the Campus Advisory Board. The election shall be conducted and completed no later than April 15 of the year of appointment. The term of office begins on July 1 of the year in which the representative is elected and terminates on June 30 two years later. The faculty representative to

the Campus Advisory Board will also serve as a voting member of the Faculty Senate and Faculty Senate Executive Committee.

Section 3. Restrictions on Holding Office

The term of office for the Campus Advisory Board Representative is for two years as prescribed by Tennessee State law. A faculty member may not serve more than two terms as representative to the Campus Advisory Board.

Section 4. Vacancies

If the office of Faculty Representative to the Campus Advisory Board becomes vacant, the Governor of the State of Tennessee shall appoint a faculty member satisfying the requirement as a successor for the remainder of the term.

Article VII. Eligibility, Nomination, and Election of Faculty Representative to the UT Board of Trustees' Education, Research and Service (ERS) Committee

Nomination and election procedures for identifying the Senate candidates for faculty representative to the UT Board of Trustees' ERS Committee will follow the same procedures used for nomination and election of the representative to the Campus Advisory Board (Article VI Section 2). However, eligibility requirements are determined by UT Board of Trustees policies. Following the Senate election, the name of the Senate candidate and documents required by Board of Trustees policies will be forwarded to the Chief Academic Officer in preparation for a final selection by the Chancellor. In the case of a tie vote among two candidates for the post, both candidates will be forwarded to the CAO for consideration by the Chancellor.

The faculty representative to the Board of Trustees Education, Research and Service Committee will also serve as a non-voting, *ex officio* member of the Faculty Senate and Faculty Senate Executive Committee.

Memphis Knoxville Chattanooga Nashville

Article VIII. Meetings

Section 1. Regular Meetings and Annual Business Meeting

The Faculty Senate holds a June business meeting and at least five regular meetings annually. Presentation of the Annual Senate Report, Senate Awards and the election of officers occurs at the June business meeting.

Section 2. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Faculty Senate are called by the President or Executive Committee or by written request of ten senators. A minimum notice of three days must be given for a special meeting except in an emergency. The purpose of the meeting must be stated in the call, and the meeting must be limited to the stated purpose.

Section 3. Voting and Quorum

Voting at meetings of the Faculty Senate is by show of hands or voice unless the majority present request a vote by anonymous ballot. All elections are conducted by anonymous ballot. A quorum comprises 20 (twenty) elected members of the Faculty Senate. If a senator cannot attend a meeting, the chosen substitute has all the rights, powers, and privileges of the absentee member, including voting rights. Provision should, when possible, be made for anonymous online voting for members participating at remote locations.

Article IX. Executive Committee

Section 1. Members

The Executive Committee is comprised of the elected officers of the Faculty Senate and at least one representative from each of the colleges or the equivalent. A college or the equivalent with more than fifteen departments elects an additional representative for each additional fifteen departments or fraction thereof. Faculty members who hold an administrative appointment (division chief, department chair or equivalent, assistant or associate dean or higher administrative position)

are not eligible for election to the Faculty Senate Executive Committee. All Faculty Senate committee chairs are expected, if available, to attend all regularly scheduled Faculty Senate Executive Committee meetings as *ex officio* guests.

Section 2. Responsibilities

The Executive Committee nominates officers for the annual elections of the Faculty Senate, recommends members and chairs, reviews assignments to standing committees with the consent of the Faculty Senate, and establishes special committees. It represents the Faculty Senate in meetings with the administration and other campus and off-campus groups and handles emergency and interim business between Faculty Senate meetings. Specific responsibilities of the Executive Committee are as follows:

- Implements Faculty Senate bylaws.
- 2. Provides oversight of goals, committee assignments, and reports.
- 3. Serves as the Faculty Senate liaison to the administration.
- 4. Provides oversight of all work performed by the senate standing committees
- 5. Oversees evaluation of administrators (Section 2.3.7.8).
- 6. Conducts faculty grievances. (Counsels, arbitrates, or intercedes on behalf of faculty, as described in the *Faculty Handbook*.)
- 7. Assists in recruiting and screening administrators for campus or system appointments. (Lends its counsel to the development of criteria and procedures for recruiting and screening candidates and assists in the selection of its faculty representatives on search committees.)

Section 3. Election and Term of Office

Each Executive Committee member representing a college, or the equivalent is elected for a term of one year, beginning July 1 of the year in which the member is elected and ending on June 30 of the following

year. The election is conducted in a face-to-face or online meeting of the faculty senators who represent the college or the equivalent. The current FSEC member(s) from that college serve as chairperson(s) of the meeting. This election should be held during the month preceding the annual election of Faculty Senate officers.

Section 4. Vacancies

Vacancies on the Executive Committee occurring during the term of office are filled for the unexpired portion of the term by election at a meeting of the faculty senators who represent the pertinent college or the equivalent.

Article X. Committees

Section 1. Standing Committees

The Executive Committee of the Faculty Senate appoints the members of the standing committees for confirmation at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Faculty Senate. All members of the standing committees are elected faculty senators with the goal of representing as many colleges as feasible on each committee. Committees are free to invite other faculty or administrators to attend committee meetings. The chair of each Committee will, in consultation with the FSEC, select a vice-chair to serve when the chair is not available. It is a specific responsibility of each Committee chair to mentor the vice-chair and other members of his/her committee to facilitate their assuming future roles as Senate leaders.

Section 2. Special Committees

The Executive Committee appoints special committees when the need arises.

Article XI. Parliamentary Authority

Section 1. Parliamentarian

A Parliamentarian is appointed annually by the President and approved by the Faculty Senate.

Section 2. Reference for Rules of Order

The rules contained in the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* only govern balloting procedures in the Faculty Senate and Faculty Senate Executive Committee. Robert's Rules may be used to govern all other portions of these meetings if called for by a majority vote of those present at the meeting.

Article XII. Amendment of Bylaws

These bylaws may be amended by an anonymous vote of two-thirds of the elected members of the Faculty Senate present at any regular or special meeting. Proposed amendments must be distributed in writing to the faculty senators at least ten days in advance of the meeting and discussed prior to voting.

Article XIII. Enabling Resolution

The enabling resolution for the Faculty Senate of the [University of Tennessee Health Science Center] was passed by the Board of Trustees of The University of Tennessee in September 1971. This enabling resolution represents the constituting document under which the Faculty Senate was established and currently operates. Footnote 1

RESOLUTION FACULTY SENATE OF THE [UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER]

Whereas the separate Faculties of [The University of Tennessee Health Science Center] have exercised through faculty meetings and committees of the several colleges certain functions related to the development of the educational policies of the University;

Whereas these functions can be more effectively performed through a smaller, more formally organized group than the Faculty as a whole; and

Whereas a need exists for more effective channels through which the Administration may seek the counsel and judgment of the Faculty about matters of concern to the University;

It is therefore resolved that a Faculty Senate of the [University of Tennessee Health Science Center] be organized, subject to the following stipulations:

- 1. That the Senate operate in accordance with the bylaws which are hereby approved;
- 2. That the Senate include authorized administrative officers of The University of Tennessee Health Science Center and of its various academic divisions;
- 3. That the Senate include elected representatives from each academic division, to be elected in such numbers and by such means as are set forth in the Bylaws.
- 4. That the Senate may consider any subject pertaining to interests of the [University of Tennessee Health Science Center] and make recommendations to the Chancellor and the Board of Trustees in regard thereto. Decisions of the Senate with respect to matters within its jurisdiction shall constitute the binding action of the [UTHSC] faculties. Jurisdiction over academic policies shall reside in the faculties of the several schools and colleges; but, insofar as actions by these several faculties affect [UTHSC] policy as a whole, or schools or colleges other than the one in which they originate, they shall be brought before the Senate.



- 5. That the Senate shall elect annually a Committee on Committees which shall make nominations for elective members of such educational committees as the bylaws may provide and such other committees as the Senate may authorize, and that following such nominations the Senate shall elect such committees; Footnote 1
- That the Senate shall have no management or administrative functions either in itself or through its committees, administrative matters being expressly reserved to the Chancellor of the [UTHSC] and the President of the University, as delegated by the Board of Trustees;
- 7. That a copy of this resolution be appended to the Bylaws, and be considered a part of the constituting document of the Faculty Senate of [UTHSC].

Footnote 1: All responsibilities of the earlier Committee on Committees are performed by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.